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Fukoku Life was founded in 1923. Since then, we have held as our
fundamental principle that the interests of policyholders must be
protected to the utmost of our ability. Throughout the life insur-
ance industry, Fukoku Life is noted for its distinguished investment
record and efficient corporate management.

The operating environment for the life insurance industry is be-
coming increasingly difficult, as a result of ongoing deregulation.
Given these conditions, Fukoku Life will devote still more atten-
tion to ensuring the soundness of insurance operations, and en-
deavor to develop products tailored to meet increasingly diverse
customer needs. At the same time, it is committed to enhancing
efficiency throughout its businesses and to making active efforts
to establish a highly competitive operating base. In this way, it will
continue to translate into practice its management principle of pro-

tecting the interests of policyholders.



Financial Highlights (Non-Consolidated)

Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

As of March 31, 2004 2005 2006 2006

Life insurance in force ...........ccccoooeoeviiieiccicnenn ¥51,807,108 ¥50,811,690 ¥50,026,617 $425,867

TOtal ASSELS ..o 5,004,706 5,088,630 5,684,365 48,389
SECUTITIES ... 3,074,350 3,318,250 3,916,311 33,338
Loans ... 1,336,491 1,282,439 1,250,813 10,647
Real estates and movables................cc.ocooee. 202,992 195,086 196,413 1,672

Total liabilities .........ccoooviiiiiiiioie e 4,820,799 4,875,749 5,317,957 45,270
Policy reserves ........ocoeovieiiioiicececee 4,608,579 4,713,388 5,033,427 42,848
Subordinated bonds ..............c.oocooiiiiii 32,500 32,500 42,843 364

Total Capital ............................................................. 183,906 212,881 366,408 3,119

For the year ended March 31,

"Total ordinary revenues............cococeeveirrecencnnnnen. 885,854 859,811 1,028,769 8,757
Premium and other income...............c...cc.c....... 740,935 731,704 846,008 7,201
Investment iINCOME ............cccveieeiiiioiieeiieeen. 126,083 107,238 165,112 1,405

"Total ordinary expenditures ...........ccccoeovieiovninnes 845,172 807,157 971,311 8,268

Net surplus for the year ........c.cccoveovniniiie 22,587 26,482 37,874 322

Solvency margin ratio (%) ........cccccceeuerieeennennn 854.0 925.0 1,139.6

EmplOyees ......ccoeiiiiiiiieicee e 14,336 13,922 13,954

Notes 1. U.S. dollar amounts are converted from yen, for convenience only, at the rate of U.S.$1=¥117.47, the rate of exchange on March 31, 2006.

2. Yen and U.S. dollar amounts are rounded down to the nearest million yen or million dollars.
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Message from the President __.

During Fiscal 2005, ended March 31, 2006,
the Japanese life insurance industry saw
shrinking demand for protection-type prod-
ucts, stemming from the aging society and

falling birthrates. However, insurance com-

panies reported robust sales for products
related to medical and nursing care, as well
as individual annuities and other asset build-
ing products. Meanwhile, the asset manage-
ment environment was favorable with do-
mestic share prices rising and market inter-
est rates starting their upward trend.

The Company maintained a sound

financial status thanks to higher retained

earnings resulting from steady fundamen-
tal profit. In efforts to return profits to customers, we raised dividends on individual insurance
policies and group annuities based on improvement on investment income and stable claims
payments. For a portion of medical insurance policies, we implemented a new dividend system
based on the payment status of benefits. We continue to actively seek ways to return profits to
customers while maintaining a sound financial base.

Supported by our "Customer-Centric" policy — where we think from the customers' stand-
point — we will strive to differentiate ourselves from our competitors and thus become "the
company of choice" from the perspective of customers.

In order to instill this policy into all employees we launched the Fukoku Restoration Project
in April 2005. One of the initiatives of the Project is the Customer Service Planning Division
established in October 2005. Additionally we carried out a customer survey for policyholders to
analyze customer satisfaction. Comments from customers through these channels are utilized to
improve management.

Fukoku Life will continue working hard to deliver insurance products and services that satisfy
the needs of customers as it strives to provide greater peace of mind in a changeable managerial

environment subject to intensifying competition, an aging society and falling birthrates.

Mool by

Tomofumi Akiyama

President



MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY

To protect the interests of

our policyholders To contribute to society

Fukoku Life will continue striving to become a company that provides its customers with greater
peace of mind. To this end, we will adhere to our philosophy of "protecting the interests of our
policyholders," which we have maintained since our establishment. We will also continue con-

tributing to society through our insurance business activities.

BUSINESS POLICIES

Adhering to our management philosophy and supported by our "Customer-Centric" policy, we
have endeavored to differentiate ourselves from our competitors and become more efficient.

To this end, we are committed to implementing the business policies outlined below.

Reinforce sales staff structure
Meticulous services by each sales person are vital for assuring customer satisfaction during each pro-
cess, from initial contract to follow-up services. We are emphasizing our finely-tuned services when in
contact with customers and continue to provide insurance products wherein the customer comes first.

Reaffirm focus on net increase in policies in force
Fukoku Life is not interested solely in expanding the balance of policies in force. Rather, we emphasize
provision of insurance products that meet customer needs, thus encouraging them to deal with us. We
also give high priority to delivering peace of mind through comprehensive follow-up, so that custom-
ers will retain our services indefinitely. By rigorously implementing this policy, we will seek to generate
a net increase in customers, which in turn will help increase net policies in force.

Enhance business efficiency
To obtain an even higher level of customer satisfaction amid more intensified competition, we must
further highlight our strengths. To this end, we will continue to improve the efficiency of our business
processes. Through these measures, we will make effective use of our management resources and en-
hance customer services.




Review of Operations (Non-Consolidated) —

¢ ) Overview

Individual Sales

Based on its management philosophy, Fukoku Life always adopts the customer's
perspective when selling life insurance and financial products by proposing the best
possible options. The Company's sales approach is based on three main principles:
Face-to-face contact, proposals carefully tailored to the specific needs of each cus-
tomer, and a personal sales manager system. We accord top priority to frequent
communications with customers to ensure that we accurately meet their needs. We
also strive to offer optimal solutions tailored to customers' individual life plans and
lifestyles. Moreover, our sales managers take the responsibility to provide long-term
follow-up to ensure ongoing support.

We have reinforced our sales system in our quest to be "the company of choice"
from the perspective of customers. In the first half of fiscal 2005 we continued pro-
viding comprehensive follow-up services to policyholders through our "Thanks 82"
program, wherein sales staff visited policyholders over the summer and winter. In
another initiative, we have upgraded our mobile computers known as "PlanDo" for
sales staff to strengthen their face-to-face sales and raise their ability to offer con-
sulting during sales. Our efforts do not stop there. By strengthening our sales sup-
port for over the counter sales at financial institutions we have seen steady growth
for sales of individual annuities, especially with the cooperative and credit banks
(Shinkin Banks) all over Japan.

Fukoku Life has responded to diversifying customer needs by developing new
nursing care insurance and medical insurance products that provide customers with
optimum insurance, covering the various risks they are exposed to during the course
of their lives. We have added new products and services for each stage of people's
lives.

Fukoku Life's nationwide sales network consists of 65 branches and more than 11,000
salespeople promoting insurance and annuities to individuals and companies. Com-
w mercial banks, Shinkin Banks, and other financial institutions also sell

individual annuities on our behalf. In December 2005, we launched

over the counter sales of single-premium whole life insurance at
Shinkin banks. By the end of fiscal 2005, a total of 213,000 policies
have been sold through this method of consigned sales by financial
institutions since October 2002. We have also been successful in ex-
panding our sales channels that sell juvenile insurance, individual an-
nuities, and single-premium endowment insurance, via the Internet,
and at agent offices located in large shopping centers.



Breakdown of life insurance in force

(¥ billions)

Group insurance:
13,430.6 (26.8%)

Individual annuities:
2,793.3 (5.6%)

Individual life insurance:
33,802.5 (67.6%)

Total: ¥50,026.5 billion

Corporate Sales

We offer proposals for group insurance systems and products that meet the diverse
needs of our customers. In the area of pensions, we provide professional consulting
services for the design of corporate pension plans. We provide a separate account
for socially responsible investments (SRIs) as a vehicle for investment in companies
that work proactively in the areas of environmental protection and social contribu-
tion. We also offer the Fukoku SRI Fund, an investment trust fund offered in de-
fined contribution pension plans.

Providing Enhanced Services with "Customer-Centric" Policy

From this fiscal year Fukoku Life carried out company reform based on the "Cus-
tomer-Centric" management policy. We believe that every time a customer comes
into contact with Fukoku Life, it is an opportunity to foster loyalty to the Company.
"To this end, we are reforming systems and changing the approach of our sales people
to provide better services. These initiatives are being used as a springboard for our
internal structural reforms, known as the Fukoku Restoration Project. As a result, in
October 2005 we established the Customer Service Planning Division which takes
comments from customers and applies them in a management perspective. Further-
more, in order to provide a unified response to customer phone inquiries we launched
the Customer Center in April 2006.

@) Business Performance in FY2005
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Life Insurance in Force

In the year under review, the balance of life insurance in force for individuals edged
down 1.9%, to ¥33,802.5 billion. Meanwhile, the balance of individual annuities
rose 9.4%, to ¥2,793.3 billion. The balance of life insurance in force for groups
declined 2.7%, to ¥13,430.6 billion, while group pension insurance increased 4.4%,
to ¥1,956.1 billion.

In the year under review, the balance of new contracts for both individual and
group life insurance was not able to offset the decline in the total balance for surren-
dered, lapsed, and matured contracts. This was mainly due to declining need for
protection-type products, stemming from the aging society and falling birthrates.
Nonetheless, the expansion of sales channels such as financial institutions helped
boost the balance of individual annuities in force.



Review of Operations (Non-Consolidated)

Premium and other income
(¥ billions)
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Total assets
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Premium Income

In the year under review, premium and other income increased 15.6%, to ¥846.0

billion. This was because of strong sales of individual annuities by sales channels

such as financial institutions and sales staff. Premium income from individual annu-

ities dramatically increased 70.4% and premium income from group pension insur-

ance increased 17.2%.

Assets, Liabilities and Capital

Non-consolidated total assets, including separate accounts, rose 11.7%, to ¥5,684.3

billion. This included an 11.5% increase in assets held in general accounts, to ¥5,563.4

billion. The main factor for the increase in total assets was a significant increase in

the market price of securities due to a rising share market as well as an increase of

the balance of securities consisting mainly of public and corporate bonds.
The policy reserve grew 6.9%, to ¥4,951.4 billion, and total liabilities rose 9.1%,

Others:
86.6 (1.5%)

Real estate and movables:

196.4 (3.5%)
Cash and deposits, and others
(Note): 234.1 (41%) ]

1,171.5 (20.6%)

Other securities:
394 (0.7%) IS
Foreign securities:—— 1,250.é
639.4 (11.2%) (22.0%) = Policy loans:
Stk 79.2 (1.4%)
OCKS: ~ Securities:
840.9 (14.8%) 3,916.3 (68.9%)
Bonds:

2,396.4 (42.2%)

Total: ¥5,684.3 billion

Note: Cash and deposits, call loans, monetary claims bought and money held in trust

Total assets
(¥ billions)
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Ordinary loans:

to ¥5,317.9 billion. We recorded a 27.9% increase in surplus capi-
tal, and a 118.2% rise in net unrealized gains on available-for-
sale securities with fair market value. As a result, total capital
climbed 72.1%, to ¥366.4 billion.

On a consolidated basis, total assets rose 11.7%, to ¥5,685.9
billion, and total capital increased 72.1%, to ¥367.2 billion.

Strengthening Our Capital Base

Due to ongoing difficulties surrounding the life insurance indus-
try, companies must reinforce their financial fundamentals.
Fukoku Life has increased its reserve for price fluctuation of se-
curities and contingency reserve as a means of reinforcing its re-
tained earnings. During the term under review, we increased our
reserve for price fluctuation of securities by ¥11.7 billion to ¥42.5
billion and our contingency reserve by ¥26.9 billion to ¥108.6
billion, both exceeding the legal standard. We also strengthened
our capital base by increasing the reserve for redemption of funds
by ¥6.0 billion to ¥24.0 billion.

Solvency Margin
The solvency margin ratio is a benchmark indicator for management soundness of

life insurance companies. Fukoku Life's solvency margin ratio at fiscal year-end was

1,139.6%, up 214.6 points. This is attributable to a continued increase in net unre-

alized gains on securities with fair market value and a rise in retained earnings due

to increases in reserve for price fluctuation of securities and contingency reserve, as

well as reinforcing financial fundamentals through a 300 million euro issue of sub-

ordinate bonds. These factors give Fukoku Life a solvency margin of the highest

level in the life insurance industry. Every effort is made to maintain a high solvency

margin ratio as we continue to provide our customers with peace of mind.
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¢) Investment Activities in FY2005

(¥ billions)
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Overview

In FY2005, ended March 31, 2006 the Japanese domestic financial and economic
environment saw an upward trend in long-term interest rates on the back of strong
individual consumption and robust capital investment from companies. Long-term
interest rates, which sat around 1.2% at the beginning of the year, started to gain
upward traction, triggering the Bank of Japan to lift its quantitative easing policy,
which in turn drove rates to over 1.7%.

Against this backdrop Fukoku Life is managing its investments centered on do-
mestic and foreign government bonds in order to ensure liquidity and income from
interest and dividends. We are also diversifying investments in shares, foreign secu-
rities and real estate.

Non-consolidated total assets, rose 11.7%, or ¥595.7 billion, to ¥5,684.3 billion.
This included a 11.5% increase, or ¥573.7 billion in assets held in general accounts,
to ¥5,563.4 billion. Interest, dividends and other income — the main component of
investment income — rose 4.6%, to ¥83.1 billion. Gains on sales of securities and
gains from trading securities increased significantly. Consequently, investment in-
come increased 35.2% to ¥139.5 billion. Investment expenses rose 59.9% to ¥35.6
billion on the back of increased derivatives costs.

As a result, investment income, minus expenses, increased 28.3 %, to ¥103.9 bil-
lion. The rate of return edged up 0.38 points, to 2.05%.

Bonds

Fukoku Life invests in government bonds, which have a high rate of liquidity. In
addition, we ensure adequate consideration is given to price fluctuation risk while
increasing the ratio of long-term investments. As a result, the Company's bond
holdings at fiscal year-end stood at ¥2,362.1 billion, up 8.2%, or ¥178.6 billion,
from the previous year.

Stocks

We increased our equity holdings in companies with strong indications of medium-
to long-term growth. And we took profits by selling equities whose prices had risen
well above expectations on the back of a buoyant equity market. During the year
under review equity prices rose dramatically and as a result yearend share holdings
were up 43.9%, or ¥241.1 billion, to stand at ¥790.7 billion.
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Review of Operations (Non-Consolidated)

Foreign Securities

We increased our foreign bond holdings, while considering differences in domestic
and foreign interest rates and currencies. We combined this with hedging against
time horizons and exchange rate fluctuations. As a result, the Company's holdings
of foreign bonds at fiscal year-end climbed 36.9%, to ¥459.1 billion and foreign
securities including equity holdings increased 32.2%, or ¥148.2 billion, to ¥608.9
billion.

Loans

Fukoku Life practices stringent loan management emphasizing profitability. Indi-
vidual loans for refinancing increased due to tie-ups with credit companies. How-
ever, at fiscal year-end, the balance of outstanding loans was down 2.5%, or ¥31.6
billion, to ¥1,250.8 billion due to an overall slump in funding demand.

Real Estate

During fiscal 2005, we sold off property that was not generating sufficient income.
On the other hand Fukoku Life acquired a large building in the Kansai region,
which we were previously leasing. We are also making steady progress with the
redevelopment of the former Defense Agency site in Tokyo's Roppongi district.
Hotel project and tenant contracts are proceeding as planned. And we expect con-
struction to be completed in December 2006. We have been actively engaged in
renovation work to improve the facilities and convenience of existing buildings, and

we have also made our effort to increase occupancy rates.
As a result, the balance of our real estate holdings edged down 0.4%, or ¥0.7
billion, to ¥191.0 billion.




@) Investment Policies for FY2006

Investment Environment

During the year under review the Japanese economy saw continued growth of do-
mestic demand driven by robust individual consumption. Adding to this was contin-
ued capital investment by companies. Japan's financial environment is forecast to
enter a trend wherein long-term interest rates will slowly rise with a steeper rise
forecast for the overnight rate due to the tightening policy by Bank of Japan. Al-
though equity prices will continue to rise slowly, we expect companies to expand
their profit base.

Bonds

Fukoku Life will carefully monitor interest rates while transferring previous low-
interest bearing investments to higher coupon bonds. We will continue to increase
investment bearing in mind of ratio of bonds in our portfolio.

Stocks

We will continue to invest in corporations earmarked for medium- to long-term
growth and companies that have been carefully selected for their ability to provide
steady dividends. Fukoku Life will increase its equity holdings while maintaining a
portfolio balanced with other assets.
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Foreign Securities

We will increase our foreign bond holdings, while diversifying currencies and time
horizons and hedging flexibly against exchange rate fluctuations. Fukoku Life will
also invest in foreign investments trusts while hedging against currency and region
to diversify the risk of portfolio.

Loans

Fukoku Life will fortify its relationships with existing corporate loan customers and
make every effort to attain new borrowers with the aim of securing steady income
from interest. We will also expand lending opportunities to individual borrowers by
offering apartment and housing loans as well as renovation loans.

Real Estate
In fiscal 2006, we will continue to seek for profitable properties while examining
new investment opportunities.

We will strive to improve profitability of existing buildings by increasing of oc-
cupancy rates through stepping up tenant recruitment and providing existing ten-
ants with better services while reviewing maintenance costs to make operations more
efficient. Preparing for natural disasters such as earthquakes, we will renew existing
buildings and enhance building safety, by installing reinforcement to the structures.

¢ ) Compliance and Risk Management System

Every year Fukoku Life plans its own Compliance Program for providing ongoing
education related to compliance. Compliance checks for company operations are
carried out compliance officers with the support of chief compliance officers.

The Company makes every effort to protect personal information with its fun-
damental Privacy Policy as well as its Regulations Concerning Treatment of Per-
sonal Information. The Company also closely monitors contractors it outsources to
with its Rules Concerning Management of Outsourced
Operators.

Our Risk Management Committee is the orga-
nization that oversees risk management. With the
president at the chair, the Committee is attended by
internal members of the board as well as auditors.
These risks have been divided into five categories and

a sub-committee assigned to each: Insurance Under-
writing Risk Sub-committee, Asset Investment Risk
Sub-committee, Operational Risk Sub-committee, In-
formation System Risk Sub-committee and Security
Risk Sub-committee.
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¢ ) Corporate Citizenship
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© 1976, 2006 SANRIO CO., LTD. APPROVAL No. 57081406

NRIO APPRO!

A

VAL No.

P2008157

Fukoku Life is engaged in various public relation activities toward build-
ing an affluent and heartfelt society.

Fukoku Life Charity Concert

Since 1993, the Company has held regular classical music Charity Con-
certs around nation as part of its commitment to enhancing interaction
with customers through music and fostering regional welfare. Although
entry to the concerts is free, visitors are asked to make donations, which
are given to local welfare groups. Since 2003, we have also held "Mini
Concerts," where musicians visit schools for disabled children and other
welfare centers before or after our classical concerts. To date, we have
held 106 Charity Concerts for 46,900 customers and 59 Mini Concerts.

Hello Kitty and Sanrio Puroland

Fukoku Life uses Sanrio's world famous Hello Kitty character for pro-
motions. In addition, Fukoku Life is a sponsor of the "Sanrio Character
Boat Ride," one of the many attractions in Sanrio Puroland, Japan's first
indoor theme park.

Communicating with Stakeholders

Every year, Fukoku Life publishes a variety of materials as a means of
disclosing information on its business activities to stakeholders. These
include its Japanese-language magazine "Disclosure" (and abridged ver-
sions thereof), booklets written for policyholders, and this English-lan-
guage annual report. In addition, we produce a variety of publications as
needed, in order to strengthen the channels of communication between
the Company, its policyholders, and its many other customers.

11
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Non-consolidated Financial Statements

Non-consolidated Balance Sheets

As of March 31,

2004 2005 2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Assets:
Cash and deposits:
Cash ..o ¥ 121 ¥ 106 ¥ 125 $ 1
Bank deposits ........c.cueuiiiiieiiiiseeiee e 44,031 26,112 69,967 595
44,152 26,219 70,092 596
Call LOANS ... 191,700 131,300 65,000 553
Monetary claims bought ........ccooeciiiiiiiii — 3,563 3,211 27
Money held In trust........ccoeoiviiiiiniieccee e 76,877 79,554 95,849 815
Securities:
Government bonds ............cocoevieiiiiiiiiieie e 1,564,392 1,702,075 1,918,058 16,328
Local government bonds ..., 70,269 83,079 83,086 707
Corporate bonds ........ccooooeeiiniriieiieecee 438,061 428,753 395,303 3,365
SEOCKS ..o 570,879 586,706 840,970 7,159
Foreign securities .............cocooiiiiiiiiiiii e 400,179 485,199 639,408 5,443
Other SECUTIHES .........ccoooviieeee e 30,568 32,436 39,484 336
3,074,350 3,318,250 3,916,311 33,338
Loans:
Policy 10ans .......c.ooooiiiiiici 77,801 78,177 79,218 674
Ordinary 10ans ..........cccooviiiininiiiiccce e, 1,258,689 1,204,261 1,171,595 9,973
1,336,491 1,282,439 1,250,813 10,647
Real estate and movables:
Land ...oooooiiiiiee s 100,881 99,658 100,998 859
Buildings ......c.ceiiriiieiiiniiiecereeee e 93,934 90,730 85,311 726
MOVADIES ....ooeeieiieeeeeee e 6,755 3,308 5,378 45
ConStruction in Progress .........coooeerererererereeeeneeereeenens 1,420 1,388 4,725 40
202,992 195,086 196,413 1,672
Reinsurance receivables ...............ccoooooioiiiiiiiiiee, 185 77 108 0
Other assets:
Accounts receivable ... 28,720 8,429 46,287 394
Prepaid eXpenses .........cccccoevrieeiinneieiee e 2,370 1,252 703 5
Accrued INCOME ......ovivvieiiieicicceceeee e 18,169 20,210 20,464 174
DIEPOSILS .ttt 2,793 2,360 2,408 20
Differential account for futures trading............ccccccevvveueune. 39 352 — —
DEIIVATIVES ..ot 2,482 2,272 310 2
Deferred valuation losses on hedge .........ccccooeeiinnicne. 13 124 1,537 13
Suspense Payment .........cocceveirieineineineeeeee s 3,733 2,304 3,753 31
Other aSSEtS ......ooviiiie oo 14,159 13,177 13,805 117
72,481 50,483 89,270 759
Deferred tax assets.........ccoooiiieieieeeee e 10,334 4,813 — —
Allowance for possible loan 10SSes ...........cccoveeiniiiceinee. (4,859) 3,157) 2,704) 23)
TOtal ASSELS ......coooviiiiiiiieeeeee e ¥5,004,706 ¥5,088,630 ¥5,684,365 $48,389




Non-consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued)

As of March 31,

2004 2005 2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Liabilities:
Policy reserves:
Reserve for outstanding claims ..........c.cocooeoirinicinnicene. ¥ 24,503 ¥ 25,294 ¥ 27472 $ 233
POLiCY T€SEIVE .oviiiiicecicc e 4,520,195 4,630,543 4,951,438 42,150
Reserve for dividends to policyholders .............ccccceoiniinnen. 63,379 57,550 54,516 464
4,608,579 4,713,388 5,033,427 42,848
Reinsurance payables ...........cocooeiiiniiiiiiinien 86 78 85 0
Subordinated bonds .............ccocoeiiiiiiiiiiii 32,500 32,500 42,843 364
Other liabilities:
Subordinated debt loans...........c..cocooviioiiiiiiiiiee 5,000 5,000 5,000 42
Corporate income tax payable ..........cccooeiiinnniiiinnnne. 13,157 4,261 7,426 63
Accounts payable ..o 63,100 3,762 38,658 329
Accrued eXPEnSES .......ovvieuieiiiiieieteee s 10,995 9,689 11,821 100
Unearned INCOME ...........c.ccoeviiiiiiieiiieeeeeeeeeeeee e 801 725 758 6
Deposits received ..o 5,640 5,389 5,217 44
Guarantee deposits received .........cocoovvrieiininieeiiniee, 11,207 10,391 11,599 98
Differential account for futures trading ............ccccoeeveirenenee. 189 42 — —
DEIIVATIVES ... 317 2,003 1,856 15
Deferred valuation gains on hedge .........c.cccocoeviinnnnn. — 2,182 250 2
SUSPENSE TECEIPE ...ttt 1,210 1,349 1,114 9
111,621 44,797 83,705 712
Reserve for retirement benefits ............c.occoooviiviiiiiiiiiiie. 44,228 51,627 51,461 438
Reserve for price fluctuation of securities .........c.cocevcererrnnnnee. 21,683 30,813 42,597 362
Deferred tax liabilities ..........c.cooooviiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeee — — 60,860 518
Deferred tax liabilities for revaluation reserve for land............ 2,101 2,543 2,977 25
Total liabilities ...............ocooveiiiiieiiicieceeeeceee e 4,820,799 4,875,749 5,317,957 45,270
Capital:
Foundation funds ............ccocooviiiiiiiiiiceccee 30,000 30,000 30,000 255
Accumulated foundation funds redeemed ............................... 1,000 1,000 1,000 8
Reserve for revaluation ..............ccocoeeiiieieiiiciiieeeeeee 112 112 112 0
Surplus:
Legal reserve for future loSses.........ccoovieirinniecirininnnenn. 987 1,187 1,387 11
Voluntary surplus reserves:
Reserve for redemption of foundation funds................... 12,000 18,000 24,000 204
Reserve for dividend allowances ...............c..c..cccocoii. 3,895 3,895 3,895 33
Reserve for advanced depreciation of real estate ............. 448 427 412 3
Reserve for directors' retirement allowances ................. 2,825 2,805 2,770 23
Other TESEIVES .....oovieiieeeeieeeeeeeeceeee e, 767 767 767 6
19,937 25,895 31,845 271
Unappropriated surplus .........cooeeoeniniciininiceeeeeees 33,562 35,847 47,270 402
Net surplus for the year ..........coccceoririiiinnicne, 22,587 26,482 37,874 322
54,487 62,930 80,503 685
Revaluation reserve for land, net of tax .................oocooveennn. 3,701 4,480 5,244 44
Net unrealized gains on securities, net of tax ..........ccccovveueeee. 94,605 114,358 249,548 2,124
Total capital ... 183,906 212,881 366,408 3,119
Total capital and liabilities .................ccococooiiiiiiii ¥5,004,706 ¥5,088,630 ¥5,684,365 $ 48,389

See notes to the non-consolidated financial statements.
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Non-consolidated Statements of Operations

Year ended March 31,
2004 2005 2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Ordinary revenues:
Premium and other income:
Premium iNCOME ..........ccooveviiiiieieieeeeeeeeeee e ¥740,596 ¥731,327 ¥ 845,604 $ 7,198
Reinsurance inCoOmMe ..........ccoocoevieeiieiiiiiiiiieieeceie e 338 376 403 3
740,935 731,704 846,008 7,201
Investment income:
Interest, dividends and other income:
Interest from deposits ........coooovveveeiririeceicece e 41 61 1,358 11
Interest and dividends from securities ............................ 34,251 41,184 45,749 389
Interest from 10ans ..........cccoooiioiioiiioeeceeeeeeeee 31,221 27,756 25,101 213
Income from real estate forrent .............ccoooveeiieieinin. 11,895 10,502 10,887 92
Other interest and dividends..............cccccooiviieiirieieeenens. 22 9 86 0
77,432 79,514 83,184 708
Gains from money held in trust, n€t........cccoovveeeinieeenne. 10,641 5,080 11,050 94
Gains from trading securities, Net..........ccceevrirveerenieieeeenene. 886 9,671 16,214 138
Gains on sales of SECUrTties...........cceoviveevieeieeeeeeeeeeeee, 19,123 8,486 28,448 242
Gains on redemption of SECUrItES ..........ccevvrirrereeririerenene. 18 — — —
Gains from derivative instruments, N€t ..............cccccvveen.... 862 — — —
Other investment INCOME .............ccceevevveeeeieieeeeeeeeeneae. 989 529 701 5
Gains from separate aCCOUNtS, NEt ........ccevvrveerreerreerrenenens 16,129 3,955 25,514 217
126,083 107,238 165,112 1,405
Other ordinary revenues:
Fund receipt from annuity rider ..........ccccccoeovieininnnenne. 431 485 404 3
Fund receipt from deposit of claims paid ...........ccccooeeneeene. 16,849 19,590 16,371 139
Reversal of reserve for retirement benefits......................... 1,305 487 166 1
OhETS .o 247 304 705 6
18,834 20,868 17,647 150
Total ordinary revenues ..............cococeceivirecrinineeceeeeee 885,854 859,811 1,028,769 8,987
Ordinary expenditures:
Claims and other payments:
CIAIIMIS .o 214,554 201,237 197,973 1,685
ANDUITIES ...t 55,674 58,477 64,442 548
BEnefits ....c.oovoiviiiiiiieee e 139,258 127,417 123,924 1,054
SUITENAETS ... 139,902 98,395 87,322 743
Other PAYMENES ......c.oveviiieieieiiieeiee e 50,359 77,938 23,841 202
Reinsurance premiums ...........occooeieiiiiiiiiniiicecec e 366 335 315 2
600,116 563,801 497,819 4,237
Provision for policy reserve and others:
Provision for reserve for outstanding claims ....................... 1,583 790 2,178 18
Provision for policy reserve .........c.cooeveeirinieeinnieeenenas 97,418 110,348 320,894 2,731
Interest on accumulated dividends to policyholders ........... 140 62 55 0
¥99,143 ¥111,200 ¥ 323,128 ¥ 2,750



Non-consolidated Statements of Operations (Continued)

Year ended March 31,

2004 2005 2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Investment expenses:
Interest eXPenses ..........ccccceiiiiiiiiniiiii e ¥ 684 ¥ 666 ¥ 1,655 $ 14
Losses on sales of securities ................c.occoooveveieeeceeeeee 22,029 3,814 5,941 50
Losses on valuation of securities ...............ccccoeeveiereienennennn. 568 760 266 2
Losses on redemption of SeCUrities ..........ccccovveveeeerrrrenenene. 10 2 19 0
Losses from derivative instruments, net ............................. — 8,273 17,834 151
Foreign exchange losses, Net .........cccoovviviieiininincciee, 345 84 1,294 11
Provision for allowance for possible loan losses .................. 2,618 — — —
Depreciation of real estate for rent and other assets ........... 5,091 4,704 4,453 37
Other investment eXPenses ...........ccceereevrvereerenieeeeeeeeenens 3,969 3,962 4,149 35
35,317 22,267 35,615 303
OPperating €XpEenSes .........c.ceveuirueuirieuireeirieerieereeeseeeseeeseeueeas 90,989 87,912 91,376 777
Other ordinary expenditures:
Claim deposit PAyIMENts ..........ocoeveveieririeieieieieeeieieee e, 8,639 11,055 11,236 95
TAXES .o 5,344 5,346 5,931 50
Depreciation ........ccco.civiiiniiiniiiiiiiiccct e 5,621 5,507 5,612 47
ONETS .o 0 64 590 5
19,605 21,975 23,370 198
Total ordinary expenditures ................cccocooivrieiinnicnnnn, 845,172 807,157 971,311 8,268
Ordinary Profits ..........ococoooviviiiiiniieeieeee e 40,681 52,653 57,457 489
Extraordinary gains:
Gains on disposal of real estate and movables ..................... 1,556 170 1,165 9
Reversal of allowance for possible loan losses ..................... — 2,076 750 6
Total extraordinary gains .............ccccoooieiinnieninncene, 1,556 2,247 1,916 16
Extraordinary losses:
Losses on disposal of real estate and movables.................... 3,641 4,985 2,570 21
Impairment loSSes ........c.eiiririeiciinieccccc e — — 3,920 33
Provision for reserve for retirement benefits ...................... 7,887 7,887 — —
Provision for reserve for price fluctuation of securities ...... 3,944 9,130 11,784 100
Other extraordinary losses ..........ccccceoevviecinnnecinne, 836 — — —
Total extraordinary 1osses ..............ccccooviiionnicccnncee, 16,309 22,002 18,275 155
Surplus before income taxes ...............ccccocoviiiiiiiciiicee. 25,928 32,898 41,098 349
Income taxes:
CUITENE ..ot 14,058 11,665 13,856 117
Deferred .....c.ooioviiiiiiiiieee e (10,718) (5,249) (10,632) (90)
Net surplus for the year ...............ccccoovviiiinniiiinee, 22,587 26,482 37,874 322
Surplus carried from the previous year ...............ccc..... 10,124 10,124 10,124 86
Reversal of revaluation reserve forland ............................ 528 (778) (764) 6)
Reversal of reserve for directors' retirement..................... 322 20 35 0
Unappropriated surplus ..............cccocooooiiiiininiiiii ¥ 33,562 ¥ 35,847 ¥ 47,270 $ 402

See notes to the non-consolidated financial statements.
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Non-consolidated Statements of Surplus

Year ended March 31,
2004 2005 2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Unappropriated surplus .........coooeeirniieiiniiccneeeenen, ¥ 33,562 ¥35,847 ¥47,270 $ 402
Reversal of voluntary surplus reserve:

Reversal of reserve for advanced depreciation of real estate.... 21 14 69 0
Total ..o 33,584 35,862 47,339 402
Appropriation of surplus:

Reserve for dividends to policyholders ............ccccoeiiinnee. 16,688 18,966 30,454 259

Net surplus:

Legal reserves for future losses ..........ccooeoeviniinciinnnee 200 200 200 1
Interest payment for foundation funds ...........cccocooveeeee. 531 531 531 4
Bonus to direCtors ............cccoooioiiiiiiiiiicccccceae 30 30 30 0
Bonus to statutory auditors .........cccoovoeeeeniiiiece 10 10 — —
Reserve for redemption of foundation funds.................... 6,000 6,000 6,000 51
6,771 6,771 6,761 57

Total appropriation of surplus .............cccooooiiiiiiiie, 23,459 25,737 37,215 316
Unappropriated surplus carried forward ............................ ¥10,124 ¥10,124 ¥10,124 $ 86

See notes to the non-consolidated financial statements.



Notes to the Non-consolidated Financial Statements

l. Presentation of the Non-consolidated Financial Statements

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying non-consolidated financial statements have been prepared from the accounts maintained by Fukoku
Mutual Life Insurance Company (the "Company") in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Insurance Business
Law of Japan and its related rules and regulations and in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
Japan, which are different in certain respects from accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions
other than Japan.

In addition, the notes to the non-consolidated financial statements include information which is not required under
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan but is presented herein as additional information.

Amounts of less than one million yen have been eliminated. As a result, total in yen shown herein do not necessarily

agree with the sum of the individual amounts.

2. U.S. Dollar Amounts
The translations of yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of the reader and have
been made, as a matter of arithmetical computation only, at the rate of ¥117.47 = US$1.00, the effective rate of exchange
at the balance sheet date of March 31, 2006. The translations should not be construed as representations that such yen

amounts have been or could in the future be, converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rates.
Il. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

1. Valuation Methods of Securities
The valuations of securities, including bank deposits and monetary claims bought which are equivalent to securities, and

securities managed as trust assets in money held in trust, are as follows:

i) Trading securities are stated at fair market value. Costs of their sales are determined by the moving average
method.

ii) Held-to-maturity debt securities are stated at amortized cost under the straight-line method, cost being deter-
mined by the moving average method.

iii) Policy-reserve-matching bonds are stated at amortized cost under the straight-line method, cost being deter-
mined by the moving average method in accordance with the Industry Audit Committee Report No.21 "Tempo-
rary Treatment of Accounting and Auditing Concerning Policy-reserve-matching bonds in Insurance Industry"
issued by the Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

iv) Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates are stated at cost, cost being determined by the moving average method.

V) Awvailable-for-sale securities with fair market value are stated at fair market value based on the market prices at the
end of fiscal year. Costs of their sales are determined by the moving average method. Net unrealized gains or
losses on these available-for-sale securities, net of taxes, are recorded as a separate component of capital.

Available-for-sale securities with no fair market value are stated at cost, cost being determined by the moving
average method, except for public and corporate bonds including foreign bonds, of which the difference between
acquisition cost and face value is considered to be an adjustment of interest. Such bonds are stated at amortized
cost under the straight-line method, cost being determined by the moving average method.

Derivative instruments are stated at fair market value.

17



18

2. Revaluation of Land

The Company revalued the land for business purposes based on the Law for Revaluation of Land (Law No.34 promul-
gated on March 31, 1998). The difference between fair value and book value resulting from the revaluation, net of related
taxes, is recorded as revaluation reserve for land as a separate component of capital and the related tax is recorded as
deferred tax liabilities for revaluation reserve for land.
= Date of revaluation: March 31, 2002
® Method of revaluation as prescribed for in Article 3 Paragraph 3 of the said Law:
Calculation is based on the appraisal value for property tax set forth in Article 2 item 3 of the Enforcement
Ordinance of the Law for Revaluation of Land (Government Ordinance No.119 promulgated on March 31,
1998) and the road rate set forth in Article 2 item 4 of the said Ordinance with certain reasonable adjustments.
= The excess of the aggregate new book value of land for business purposes after revaluation over the total fair value
of land, which is required to be disclosed in accordance with Article 10 of the Law for Revaluation of Land, were
¥1,321 million and ¥4,178 million as of March 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively. The total fair value of land
exceeded the aggregated new book value of land after revaluation as of March 31, 2006.

3. Depreciation of Real Estate and Movables

Depreciation of real estate and movables held by the Company, except for the buildings acquired on and after April 1,
1998 which are depreciated based on the straight-line method, is computed based on the declining-balance method.
Movables acquired for ¥100,000 or more but less than ¥200,000 are depreciated by equal amounts over three years.

4. Foreign Currency Translation

5. Reserves

Foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities, except for investments in subsidiaries and affiliates, are translated
into Japanese yen at the effective exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. Investments in subsidiaries and

affiliates are translated into Japanese yen at the exchange rate on the date of acquisition.

(1) Allowance for possible loan losses
Allowance for possible loan losses is provided in accordance with the Company's standards of self-assessment and write-

offs and reserves on credit quality:

i) For the credits of borrowers who are legally bankrupt such as being in the proceedings of bankruptcy or civil
rehabilitation (hereinafter called "legally bankrupt borrowers") and who are substantially bankrupt (hereinafter
called "substantially bankrupt borrowers"), the Company provides the remaining amount of credits after the
direct write-off described below and the deductions of the amount expected to be collected through the disposal
of collateral or the execution of guarantees.

ii) For the credits of borrowers who are not currently bankrupt but have a high possibility of bankruptcy, the Com-
pany provides the amounts deemed as necessary considering the borrowers' ability to pay, within the amounts
after deductions of the amount expected to be collected through the disposal of collateral or the execution of
guarantees.

iif) For the credits of borrowers other than the above, the Company provides the amounts calculated by multiplying

the borrowers' balance by the actual ratio of bad debt losses on defaults during a certain past period.



All credits are assessed by the relevant departments in accordance with the Company's standards of self-assessment on
credit quality. The results of the assessment are reviewed by the audit department, which is independent of business-
related divisions. Subsequently, the allowance for possible loan losses are provided based on the results of these assess-
ments.

For the credits of legally bankrupt borrowers and substantially bankrupt borrowers, the amounts remaining after
deductions of collateral value or the amounts collectible through the execution of guarantees is written-off directly from
the borrower's balance as the estimated uncollectible amounts. The amounts written-off as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and
2006 were ¥22,906 million, ¥22,408 million and ¥833 million (US$7million), respectively.

(2) Reserve for retirement benefits

The Company adopts accounting standards for employees' retirement benefits (Business Accounting Council dated June
16, 1998) and accounts for the reserve for retirement benefits based on the projected benefit obligation and plan assets at
the balance sheet date.

6. Reserve for Price Fluctuation of Securities
Reserve for price fluctuation of securities is calculated in accordance with the ruling in Article 115 of the Insurance

Business Law.

1. Accounting for Hedge Activities
Hedge accounting is based on "Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments"” issued on January 22, 1999 by the
Business Accounting Deliberation Council.

Primarily, for the interest rate swaps on loans qualifying for hedge accounting because of high correlation and effec-
tiveness between the hedging instruments and the hedged item, gains and losses on the interest rate swaps are deferred
until the maturity of the hedged transactions.

Deposits, bonds and loans denominated in foreign currencies for which forward foreign exchange contracts are used
to hedge the foreign currency fluctuations are translated at the contract rates if the forward contracts qualify for specific
hedge accounting. In this case, exchange differences between exchange rate on trade date and forward contract rate are
allocated to each fiscal year from the date contracted to the date settled.

For judging the effectiveness of hedge used, ratio analysis of comparing the cash flow fluctuation of hedged item with
the same of hedging instruments is mostly applied.

8. Accounting for Consumption Taxes
The Company accounts for consumption taxes by the tax-exclusion method. The consumption taxes on certain assets,
which are not deductible from consumption taxes withheld and that are stipulated to be deferred under the Tax Law, are
deferred as prepaid expenses and amortized equally over five years. Consumption taxes other than deferred consumption

taxes are recognized as an expense when incurred.

9. Policy Reserve
Policy reserve is based on Article 116 of the Insurance Business Law, and the premium reserve at the end of fiscal year is
calculated by the following method:
In regard to the contracts subject to the standard policy reserve, the method as prescribed by the Commissioner of
Financial Services Agency (Ministry of Finance Ordinance No. 48, 1996) is applied.

In regard to the contracts not subject to the standard policy reserve, the net level premium method is applied.

19



20

10. Software
The software for internal use, which is included in other assets, is amortized based on straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives.

11. Deferred Assets
Bond issuance expenses are charged to income when paid. Discount on bonds is deferred as other assets and amortized

equally over the period for which interest on bonds is fixed.
lll. Notes to Balance Sheets

1. Loans Receivable
The total amounts of credits to bankrupt borrowers, delinquent loans, delinquent loans past 3 months or more and
restructured loans, which were included in loans, were ¥ 7,509 million, ¥1,971 million and ¥2,317 million (US$19
million) as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

i) The balances of credits to bankrupt borrowers were ¥568 million, ¥556 million and ¥429 million (US$3 million)
as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

i) The balances of delinquent loans were ¥4,744 million, ¥807 million and ¥1,882 million (US$16 million) as of
March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

iif) There were no balances of delinquent loans past 3 months or more as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006.

iv) The balances of restructured loans were ¥2,196 million, ¥607 million and ¥5 million (US$45 thousand) as of
March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Credits to bankrupt borrowers represent loans, excluding the balances already written-off, which meet the conditions
prescribed in Article 96 Paragraph 1 Item 3 and 4 of the Enforcement Regulations of the Corporate Tax Law. Moreover,
accruing interest of these loans is not recorded as income after determining that principal of or interest on these loans is
unlikely to be collected due to the significant delay in repayment of principal or interest payment or for some other
reasons.

Delinquent loans are credits whose accruing interest is not recorded as income due to the same reasons as described
above, and exclude credits to bankrupt borrowers and loans for which interest payments have been suspended and re-
scheduled to assist and support the borrowers in the restructuring of their business.

Delinquent loans past 3 months or more are loans for which interest payment or repayment of principal are delinquent
for 3 months or more from the due date under the terms of the related loan agreements, excluding those loans classified
as credits to bankrupt borrowers and delinquent loans.

Restructured loans are loans for which certain concessions favorable to borrowers, such as interest reduction or ex-
emptions, rescheduling of due date of principal or interest payment, waiver of claim or other terms, have been negotiated
for the purpose of assisting and supporting the borrowers in the restructuring of their business. This category excludes
loans classified as credits to bankrupt borrowers, delinquent loans and delinquent loans past 3 months or more.

The direct write-offs related to loans decreased credits to bankrupt borrowers described above by ¥51 million, ¥21,615
million and ¥51 million (US$436 thousand) as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

The direct write-offs related to loans decreased delinquent loans described above by ¥22,854 million, ¥793 million and
¥782 million (US$6 million) as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.



2. Accumulated Depreciation of Real Estate and Movabhles
Accumulated depreciation of real estate and movables totaled to ¥107,225 million, ¥112,678 million and ¥113,289 mil-
lion (US$964 million) as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

3. Income Taxes
Deferred tax assets as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 totaled to ¥65,196 million, ¥71,200 million and ¥82,460 million
(US$701 million), respectively. Deferred tax liabilities as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 totaled to ¥54,862 million,
¥66,387 million and ¥143,320 million (US$1,220 million), respectively.

Major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:
As of March 31,

2004 2005 2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Deferred tax assets:
POLICY TESEIVES ...evvveiiiiicrccee e ¥28,257 ¥32,962 ¥ 43,026 $ 366
Reserve for retirement benefits ........coeeeveevecveeeeenenne. 15,344 18,359 18,634 158
Reserve for price fluctuation of securities .........c.c...... 7,851 11,157 15,424 131
Allowance for possible loan losses .......c.cceeeevrerunnnee 9,471 4,610 _ _
Deferred tax liabilities:
Net unrealized gains on SECUrities.......covveveveucrcrerunnen 53,702 64,914 141,654 1,205

The statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rates for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were 36.2%
and 12.9%, 36.2% and 19.5% and 36.2% and 7.8%, respectively. The major differences between the statutory tax rate
and the actual effective tax rate were reserve for dividends to policyholders of (22.8%), (20.9%) and (26.8%) for the years
ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

4. Separate Accounts
"Total assets in separate accounts provided for in Article 118 of the Insurance Business Law were ¥96,690 million, ¥101,227
million and ¥123,046 million (US$1,047 million) as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. The amounts of
liabilities were the same as these figures.

J. Net Assets
Net assets defined in Article 24-2 Paragraph 2 Item 2 of the Enforcement Regulation of the Insurance Business Law were
¥102,691 million, ¥120,090 million and ¥259,925 million (US$2,212 million) as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006,

respectively.

6. Monetary Claims to Directors
Monetary claims to directors as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were ¥26 million, ¥21 million and ¥16 million
(US$143 thousand), respectively.
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1. Receivahles from / Payables to Subsidiaries
The total amounts of receivables from/payables to subsidiaries were ¥25 million and ¥975 million as of March 31, 2004,
¥23 million and ¥1,231 million as of March 31, 2005 and ¥21 million (US$185 thousand) and ¥1,602 million (US$13
million) as of March 31, 2006, respectively.

8. Reserve for Dividends to Policyholders

Changes in reserve for dividends to policyholders were as follows:
As of March 31,

2004 2005 2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Balance at the end of previous fiscal year ..........ccc.c......... ¥ 70,751 ¥ 63,879 ¥ 57,550 $ 489
Transfer from surplus in previous fiscal year .................. 15,232 16,688 18,966 161
Dividends paid in fiscal year .........ccccceevveuereeccninnnnenenee. (22,244) (23,079) (22,057) (187)
INCrease in INLEIeSt ...evereereererrierierterieneeteseeeeee e eeenees 140 62 55 0
Balance at the end of fiscal year ......cccovvveeercncrenenuenence. ¥ 63,879 ¥ 57,550 ¥ 54,516 $ 464

9. Pledged Assets and Secured Debts
Assets pledged as collateral as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 totaled to ¥22,794 million, ¥20,834 million and ¥19,440
million (US$165 million), respectively. Secured debts as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 totaled to ¥5,268 million,
¥5,080 million and ¥4,868 million (US$41 million), respectively.

10. Commitment Line

As of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, there were unused commitment line agreements under which the Company is the
lender of ¥14,332 million, ¥12,812 million and ¥3,624 million (US$30 million), respectively.

11. Subordinated Bonds

Repayments of subordinated bonds are subordinated to other obligations.

12. Subordinated Debt Loans

Repayments of subordinated debt loans are subordinated to other obligations.

13. Assets Denominated in Foreign Currencies
Assets denominated in foreign currencies as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 totaled to ¥310,670 million, ¥396,364
million and ¥569,822 million (US$4,850 million), respectively. The principal foreign currency asset amounts as of March
31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were US$1,507 million and 801 million euros, US$1,644 million and 1,017 million euros and
US$2,567 million and 1,487 million euros, respectively.
Liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as of March 31, 2006 totaled to ¥43,820 million. The foreign currency
liability amounts as of March 31, 2006 were 306 million euros.



14. Contribution to Policyholders Protection Fund and Corporation

The future contribution to the former Insurance Policyholders Protection Fund of Japan, which was succeeded by the
Life Insurance Policyholders Protection Corporation of Japan based on the Supplementary Article 140 Paragraph 5 of
the Financial System Reform Law, were estimated at ¥1,783 million, ¥1,306 million and ¥800 million (US$6 million) as
of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. The contribution will be charged as operating expenses in the year in
which they are paid.

The future contribution to the Life Insurance Policyholders Protection Corporation of Japan under Article 259 of the
Insurance Business Law were estimated at ¥9,247 million, ¥7,243 million and ¥10,615 million (US$90 million) as of
March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. The contribution will be charged as operating expenses in the year in which
they are paid.

15. Reserve for Retirement Benefits
(1) The reserve for retirement benefits as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were calculated as follows:

As of March 31,

2004 2005 2006 2006

Millions of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

a. Projected benefit obligation .........cccoeeveveuence. ¥ (73,941) ¥ (73,281) ¥ (73,568) $ (626)
b. Fair value of pension plan assets..........cccc....... 14,338 15,771 19,810 168

c. Unfunded benefit obligation (a+b) .................. (59,602) (57,510) (53,758) 457)
d. Unrecognized transition obligation ................ 7,887 — — —
e. Unrecognized actuarial differences ................. 7,141 5,572 2,020 17
f. Unrecognized prior service Cost .........cccoveene.. 345 310 276 2

g. Reserve for retirement benefits (c+d+e+f)....... ¥ (44,228) ¥(51,627) ¥ (51,461) $ (438)

(2) Gross amount of retirement benefit expenses for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were as follows:

Year ended March 31,

2004 2005 2006 2006

Millions of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
SEIVICE COST wuvuinrmeinieinieinieerieeneeteieeere e e ¥ 3,894 ¥ 3,826 ¥3,563 $30
INEETESt COST.eeuiiruiiiiiiniiinieeieetert et 1,481 1,478 1,464 12

Expected return on plan assets ........ccccceeeerueuenenee (392) (501) (551) “
Amortization of transition obligation ................. 7,887 7,887 — —
Recognized actuarial differences ......c.ccccecuennee. 980 851 780 6
Amortization of prior service cost ...........ccceueunne 6 34 34 0
¥13,857 ¥13,576 ¥5,290 $45

Notes: The amortization of transition obligation is recorded as provision for reserve for retirement benefits which is

included in extraordinary losses.
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(3) The assumptions used in calculation of the above information were as follows:

= Method of attributing the projected benefits to periods of service .......
B DiISCOUNT FALE coovvrrrercnciiee e
= Expected rate of return on pension plan assets ........
® Amortization period of transition obligation ...........
= Recognition period of actuarial differences..............

= Amortization period of prior service cost................

16. Stocks of Subsidiaries

.............................. 3.5%

Straight-line basis
2.0%

5 years
10 years
10 years

The amounts of stocks of subsidiaries the Company held as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were ¥2,826 million

(US$24 million), respectively.

17. Policy Reserves for the Reinsurance Contracts

Reserve for outstanding claims for the reinsurance contracts provided in accordance with Article 71 Item 1 of the En-

forcement Regulation of the Insurance Business Law ("reserve for outstanding claims for ceded reinsurance") were ¥27
million and ¥900 thousand (US$7 thousand) of March 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.
Policy reserve for the reinsurance contracts provided in accordance with Article 71 Item 1 of the Enforcement Regu-

lation of the Insurance Business Law ("policy reserve for ceded reinsurance") were ¥39 million and ¥31 million (US$269

thousand) as of March 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.
IV. Notes to Statements of Operations

1. Transactions with Subsidiaries

The total amounts of revenues and expenses from transactions with subsidiaries for the years ended March 31, 2004,
2005 and 2006 were ¥430 million and ¥5,857 million, ¥351 million and ¥6,226 million, and ¥405 million (US$3 million)

and ¥6,746 million (US$57 million), respectively.

2. Gains/Losses on Sales of Securities, Losses on Securities

Major items of gains on sales of securities were as follows:

Year ended March 31,
2004 2005 2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Domestic BONAS ......ocviveeiieieiieeieeeeceeeeeeeeeeeeee e ¥11,888 ¥ 1,731 ¥ 1,341 $ 11
Domestic stocks and other .......c.ccceeeveveeeecieneceecieieenns 5,544 6,405 25,607 217
Foreign securities ... 1,690 350 1,499 12
Major items of losses on sales of securities were as follows:
Year ended March 31,
2004 2005 2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Domestic DONAS ......ocveveeiieieiieeieeeceeeeeeceeeeeee s ¥ 9,076 ¥ 534 ¥ 702 $5
Domestic stocks and other ........cccoeveeeeeeeeerieeeeeeeenenee. 12,674 3,051 4,994 42
Foreign SeCurities .........coevviviiininieninicinicincceccencne 278 228 244 2




Major items of losses on valuation of securities were as follows:

Year ended March 31,

2004 2005 2006 2006

Millions of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Domestic stocks and other .........ccccovevveveeeeceeeeeeeieenene ¥568 ¥693 ¥266 $ 2
Foreign Securities .........oovevivmeiviiiniiiniicniiciieceenns — 67 — —

3. Policy Reserve for the Reinsurance Contracts
For the year ended March 31, 2006, reversal of reserve for outstanding claims for ceded reinsurance considered in
calculation of provision for reserve for outstanding claims was ¥26 million (US$223 thousand).
For the year ended March 31, 2006, reversal of policy reserve for ceded reinsurance considered in calculation of

provision for policy reserve was ¥8 million (US$68 thousand).

4. Gains from Trading Securities

Major items of gains from trading securities were as follows:

Year ended March 31,

2004 2005 2006 2006

Millions of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Interest, dividends and other income ..........ccccveveuvenennes ¥ 4776 ¥6,518 ¥8,310 $70
Gains/(Losses) on sales of trading securities................... (1,001) (538) 3,299 28
Gains/(Losses) on valuation of trading securities ........... (2,902) 3,475 4,036 34

5. Gains/Losses from Money Held in Trust
Gains from money held in trust for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 included valuation gains of ¥7,733
million, ¥2,446 million and ¥2,447 million (US$20 million), respectively.

6. Gains/Losses from derivative Instruments
Gains from derivative instruments for the year ended March 31, 2004 included valuation gains of ¥2,021 million.
Losses from derivative instruments for the year ended March 31, 2005 included valuation losses of ¥3,965 million.
Gains from derivative instruments for the year ended March 31, 2006 included valuation gains of ¥1,539 million (US$13
million).

1. Extraordinary Losses

Other extraordinary losses included in extraordinary losses for the year ended March 31, 2004 were losses relating to
subsidiaries, net of the reversal of reserve for financial assistance to related company of ¥650 million.

25



26

8. Impairment of Fixed Assets

Effective for fiscal years beginning on or after Aprill, 2005, the Company adopted accounting standards for impairment
of fixed assets (Business Accounting Council dated August 9, 2002). As a result, surplus before income taxes for the year

decreased by ¥3,920 million (US$33 million).

(1) Method of grouping

Real estate and other assets used for insurance business operations are classified as one asset group as a whole. Other

assets such as lease property and unused real estate are classified as one group individually.

(2) Background of recognizing the impairment losses

As a result of decline in profitability due to decrease of rental income and of continuous decline of market value of land,
the Company reduced the book value of lease property and unused real estate to recoverable amount. The amount
reduced were recognized as impairment losses included in extraordinary losses.

(3) Asset groups recognized impairment losses and losses by fixed assets

Year ended March 31,

2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
a. Lease property:
AN oot sttt b et reeaesbeaennas ¥ 952 $ 8
BUildings «.eeveveeeerererieiereenininieieeeenertneteieeest sttt st 1,701 14
OLRELS ettt e et be st e b e s eseebe et e sessesseseesessaseneans 559 4
TOTAL ettt sttt ne e be e neen ¥3,214 $27
b. Unused real estate
LN ettt ettt s ee s ¥ 307 $ 2
BUildings «..c.eveeeereneeeeieeierneeeeer et e 397 3
OTRETS vttt ettt sttt nene 1 0
TOTAL ettt sttt ne e be e neen ¥ 706 $ 6
c. Total (a+b):
| 7Y T OO ¥1,259 $10
BUildings «..c.eveeeereneeeeieeierneeeeer et e 2,099 17
OTRETS vttt ettt sttt nene 561 4
TOTAL ettt sttt ne e be e neen ¥ 3,920 $33

Note : Major item of others was impairment losses of land lease rights of ¥559 million (US$4 million).

(4) Calculation method of recoverable amount

Recoverable amount is based on net sales value. Net sales value is determined based on appraisal value, posted price or

road rate.

V. Subsequent Events

On May 8, 2006, the board of directors of the Company resolved the raising foundation funds for the purpose of strength-
ening of the capital base subject to the approval of the policyholder representative meeting and Financial Service Agency.



Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors of Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Company

We have audited the accompanying non-consolidated balance sheets of Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance
Company as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, and the related non-consolidated statements of operations
and surplus for the years then ended, all expressed in Japanese yen. These non-consolidated financial state-
ments are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these non-consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evi-
dence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opin-
ion.

In our opinion, the non-consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the non-consolidated financial position of Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Company as of March
31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, and the non-consolidated results of their operations for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

(1) As described in Note IV. 8, in the year ended March 31, 2006, the Company adopted the new account-
ing standards for impairment of fixed assets.

(2) As described in Note V, on May 8, 2006, the board of the directors of the Company resolved the raising
foundation funds.

The amounts expressed in U.S. dollars, which are provided solely for the convenience of the reader, have

been translated on the basis set forth in Note L. 2 to the accompanying non-consolidated financial state-
ments.

"Tokyo, Japan
May 24, 2006

%@Lﬁfwffr%

The Fuji Accounting Office

27



28

Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of March 31,
2004 2005 2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Assets:
Cash and deposits .........cccoviuiuriniiirieneseese e ¥ 47,037 ¥ 29419 ¥ 73,841 $ 628
Callloans ......ooviiviieieeeeee e 191,700 131,300 65,000 553
Monetary claims bought .........ccooeiiiiiiiii — 3,563 3,211 27
Money held In trust ........ccoioiviiiinieccee e 76,877 79,554 95,849 815
SECUIITIES ..ot 3,071,799 3,315,697 3,913,767 33,317
LLOANS ..o 1,336,491 1,282,439 1,250,813 10,647
Real estate and movables.......................ocooiiiii 203,087 195,172 196,510 1,672
Reinsurance receivables ...........cocoovooviiiiiiiiiiiec, 185 77 108 0
OLRET ASSELS ...vvviviciieiieieieee e 73,088 50,846 89,668 763
Deferred tax aSsets..........coocviiieieieieee e 10,414 4,898 191 1
Allowance for possible loan 10sSes ...........ccocoeciniriiecnnnnee. (5,162) (3,183) (2,989) 25)
TOtal ASSELS .....ocooviiiiiieieeeeee e ¥5,005,519 ¥5,089,787 ¥5,685,972 $48,403
Liabilities:
Policy reserves:
Reserve for outstanding claims ..........ccocooeiiiiiiinicene. ¥ 24,503 ¥ 25294 ¥ 27,472 $ 233
POLICY FESEIVE ..o 4,520,195 4,630,543 4,951,438 42,150
Reserve for dividends to policyholders ............ccccocoiiinnnee. 63,879 57,550 54,516 464
4,608,579 4,713,388 5,033,427 42,848
Reinsurance payables ..........ccoooiiiiinniiiiincc 86 78 85 0
Subordinated bonds ... 32,500 32,500 42,843 364
Other Habilities .........c.ccoovoviiiiicieceeeeeeeeee e 111,945 45,085 83,937 714
Reserve for retirement benefits ................ccocoovieiiiiiiii, 44,236 51,639 51,477 438
Reserve for price fluctuation of securities ............ccccovrueueene. 21,683 30,813 42,597 362
Deferred tax Liabilities ..........c.oooviiiiioiiiie e — — 60,860 518
Deferred tax liabilities for revaluation reserve for land ........... 2,101 2,543 2,977 25
Total liabilities ....................c.ocoooooiiiiieeeeeee e 4,821,131 4,876,048 5,318,205 45,272
MiNOrity INtETeSt ..........oueuiiiiiiieiiieec e 338 367 468 3
Capital:
Foundation funds ..............cocoooooioiiiiceeeeeee e 30,000 30,000 30,000 255
Accumulated foundation funds redeemed .............................. 1,000 1,000 1,000 8
Reserve for revaluation ..............cccocoeviviiieiiiieicieiececee 112 112 112 0
SUIPIUS . 54,840 63,599 81,488 693
Revaluation reserve for land, net of tax ........................oco.. 3,701 4,480 5,244 44
Net unrealized gains on securities, net of tax ..........cccccoveeees 94,608 114,360 249,554 2,124
Foreign currency translation adjustment..............cccooveveeueene. (213) (181) (101) )
Total capital ...........cocooiiiii e 184,048 213,370 367,298 3,126
Total liabilities, minority interest and capital .................... ¥5,005,519 ¥5,089,787 ¥5,685,972 $48,403

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year ended March 31,

2004 2005 2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Ordinary revenues:
Premium and other income ................c.ccooiiiiiiiiiieee ¥740,935 ¥731,703 ¥846,007 $7,201
Investment income:
Interest, dividends and other income ..................cccooeee. 77,517 79,552 83,229 708
Gains from money held in trust, net..........cccccevvecccrinnnnenen. 10,738 5,103 11,070 94
Gains from trading securities, Net..........coceceverirrereeerererenenen. 886 9,671 16,214 138
Gains on sales of securities..............c.ocoooeviiiieieeeeeeeee 19,127 8,486 28,448 242
Gains on redemption of SECUTTHES .........ooveveveriririeieiiiieiee, 21 — — -
Gains from derivative instruments, net ................................. 862 — — —
Other INVEStMENt INCOME ........c.oeooviiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 1,043 557 730 6
Gains from separate aCCOUNtS, Nt .....c.ooveveveueririrrereieerierenenens 16,129 3,955 25,514 217
126,326 107,327 165,207 1,406
Other ordinary revenues ............cooooeeueininieieeeeeieeeee e, 19,558 21,706 18,654 158
Total ordinary revenues ..............cccccooevieeiininccisecs 886,820 860,738 1,029,869 8,767
Ordinary expenditures:
Claims and other payments:
CIAIINIS ..o 214,554 201,237 197,973 1,685
ADNDUITIES ..ottt 55,674 58,477 64,442 548
BENefits ...ocoooviiiiiiiiccc e 139,258 127,417 123,924 1,054
SUITENAETS ..ot 139,902 98,395 87,322 743
Other PAYMENES ......c.cuiiiiiieieiiieeeieee e 50,726 78,273 24,156 205
600,116 563,801 497,819 4,237
Provision for policy reserve and others:
Provision for reserve for outstanding claims ...........c.cc.o........ 1,583 790 2,178 18
Provision for policy reserve ...........ccooveeenininicininneeenen, 97,418 110,348 320,894 2,731
Interest on accumulated dividends to policyholders ............. 140 62 55 0
99,143 111,200 323,128 2,750
Investment expenses:
Interest eXPenses ...........cocoveriiriiiieiiiiiiie e 684 666 1,655 14
Losses on sales of securities ................c..ccocveoiieeeeieeeeen 22,029 3,814 5,941 50
Losses on valuation of securities ...............c.cccooceeveevevereeenn.n. 568 760 266 2
Losses on redemption of SECUrities ...........ceceervrierecenininnnens 10 2 19 0
Losses from derivative instruments, Net .............cccccoeeenne... — 8,273 17,834 151
Foreign exchange losses, Net ..........cccceviriiiiiininieicnineene, 346 84 1,294 11
Provision for allowance for possible loan losses .................... 2,044 — — -
Depreciation of real estate for rent and other assets ............. 5,091 4,704 4,453 37
Other invesStMENt EXPENSES .........coveveveiririeieeirieieeieeeeeeeenns 3,555 3,437 3,499 29
34,329 21,742 34,965 297
OPperating EXPenSes ........ccceeeveuerrrueieueieieeeieeeieeeieeereeeeneeeenees 91,833 88,839 92,061 783
Other ordinary expenditures.............coceceverinieenininneceneeenes 19,644 22,020 23,417 199
Total ordinary expenditures ................ccccccoovnieiinnicnnnnn 845,067 807,605 971,392 8,269
Ordinary Profits ............ccccoviiiiininiiiireecereeee e 41,753 53,132 58,476 497
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Consolidated Statements of Operations (Continued)

Year ended March 31,
2004 2005 2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Extraordinary gains:

Gains on disposal of real estate and movables....................... ¥ 1,572 ¥ 170 ¥ 1,165 $

Reversal of allowance for possible loan losses ....................... — 2,159 492 4
Total extraordinary gains .............cccovviionicecinneec 1,572 2,330 1,657 14
Extraordinary losses:

Losses on disposal of real estate and movables...................... 4,263 4,985 2,607 22

Impairment loss .......ccooviiiiiiiicic e, — — 3,920 33

Provision for reserve for retirement benefits ....................... 7,887 7,887 — —

Provision for reserve for price fluctuation of securities ........ 3,944 9,130 11,784 100

Other extraordinary losses ..........c.cocoeerirniccininnicieeee, 997 — — —
Total extraordinary 1osses.............ccccooiiiniieininc, 17,092 22,002 18,312 155
Surplus before income taxes ..............c.cococeoeniiieieniniieenn, 26,233 33,460 41,821 356
Income taxes:

CUITENE 1.ttt 14,245 11,954 14,310 121

Deferred ....c.ooiiiiiiiie (10,742) (5,253) (10,741) 91)
Minority INtErest ..........coeuivioiiiiieiiieieceee e 35 39 118 1
Net surplus for the year ..............cccocooiiiiiiiiii ¥ 22,694 ¥26,720 ¥38,134 $324

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statements of Surplus

Year ended March 31,

2004 2005 2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Surplus at the beginning of the year ...................c.cccocoooi. ¥47.420 ¥54,840 ¥63,599 $541
Additions:
Net surplus for the year ........cccccooivieiiiniiiiiieceee 22,694 26,720 38,134 324
Reversal of revaluation reserve for land ............................... 528 — — —
Increase of surplus due to reduction in the number
of affiliates under the equity method..........ccccccvveverueuennceee 0 — — —
23,223 26,720 38,134 324
Deductions:
Transfer to reserve for dividends to policyholders .............. 15,232 16,611 18,910 160
Interest payment for foundation funds ...........ccccoeeirirennne. 531 531 531 4
Bonus to directors and statutory auditors..............ccccoeevnenee. 40 40 40
Reversal of revaluation reserve for land ................................ — 778 764 6
15,803 17,961 20,245 172
Surplus at the end of the year ..o, ¥54,840 ¥63,599 ¥81,488 $693

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

31



32

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31,
2004 2005 2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Cash flows from operating activities:
Surplus before INCOME taXes ......c.oovvvivrieiiiririieiciieeec s ¥ 26,233 ¥ 33,460 ¥ 41,821 $ 356
Depreciation of real estate for rent and other assets .... 5,091 4,704 4,453 37
Depreciation ..........ccccooveiiiiniiiiiiiieceee 5,651 5,536 5,643 48
Impairment 10ss ......c.cccovevvvicioinnnes — — 3,920 33
Amortization of consolidation goodwill (70) — — —
Increase (Decrease) in reserve for outstanding claims ... 1,583 790 2,178 18
Increase (Decrease) in policy TeServe ...........ooeuiuiicuenrneiniriecccicenes 97,418 110,348 320,894 2,731
Interest on accumulated dividends to policyholders ..............ccccccccee.. 140 62 55 0
Increase (Decrease) in allowance for possible loan losses ......... 2,044 2,159) 492) “)
Increase (Decrease) in reserve for retirement benefits............cccoceenni. 6,584 7,402 (162) 1)
Increase (Decrease) in reserve for price fluctuation of securities............... 3,944 9,130 11,784 100
Interest, dividends and other income (77,517) (79,552) (83,229) (708)
(Gains) LLOSSES ON SECUTITIES .......ovieeeieeiieeieiieie et (22,494) (14,366) (57,185) (486)
INEErest EXPENSES ....oveuiiiiiiiiiieiiiiciirct ettt 684 666 1,655 14
Foreign exchange (gains) losses, net ............... 346 84 1,294 11
(Gains) Losses on real estate and movables .... 2,154 4,814 1,441 12
(Increase) Decrease in reinsurance receivables 15 107 30) )
(Increase) Decrease in other assets ........................ (3,100) 892 (5,768) (49)
Increase (Decrease) in reinsurance payables... @) ®) 6 0
Increase (Decrease) in other liabilities............. (2,286) (1,985) 195 1
OBRETS wovvooe oo 756 2,612 4,461 37
SUDLOAL oo 47,172 82,540 252,940 2,153
Interest, dividends and other income received 85,749 90,509 97,732 831
Interest paid.......ccoooiiiiii (684) (666) (1,649) 14)
Dividends to policyholders paid ...........cccocoviiiiiiiiieiieccceae 22,2449 (23,002) (22,000) (187)
OERETS - 211 4 - —
Corporate income tax paid ........cccceevverreeininneccennn. (752) (20,779) (11,059) “94)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 109,451 128,605 315,963 2,689
Cash flows from investing activities:
(Increase) Decrease in depoSsits ............cceuruririririiiecicieieieieneeeeeeeeeieas — (233) 15) )
Proceeds from sales and redemption of monetary claims bought ........ — — 351 2
Payments for increase in money held in trust ............cccccooeeiiiiiins (5,000) (11,007) (10,299) 87)
Proceeds from decrease in money held in trust 91,578 13,375 5,006 42
Payments for purchase of securities................cccccccee.. . (2,253,986) (861,434) (1,102,731) 9,387)
Proceeds from sales and redemption of securities ..........c.coceeeerrrennenee 1,893,041 609,363 762,325 6,489
Payments for additions to loans ...............ccccocooiiiiiiis (401,252) (327,026) (364,582) (3,103)
Proceeds from collections of loans .......... 444,014 379,926 398,529 3,392
Proceeds from settlement of derivative ... (19,373) (164)
Ohers ..o 1,227 (5,342) (728) 6)
SUDLOTAL oo (230,378) (202,379) (331,517) (2,822)
Payments for purchase of real estate and movables ... (3,561) (4,911) (17,728) (150)
Proceeds from sales of real estate and movables 3,184 1,001 5,204 44
OThErs ..o 1,167 — — —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities.............c.c.c......... (229,588) (206,289) (344,041) (2,928)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issueing bonds............ccccooeviiiiiiiicii e — — 40,524 344
Payments for redemption of bonds ......... — — (32,500) (276)
Interest payment for foundation funds (531) (531) (531) “)
OERETS ..ot (1) (10) (18) 0)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ............c.c.cccceueeev. (532) (541) 7,475 63
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents............... 99) @7 (1,290) (10)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.......................... (120,768) (78,251) (21,893) (186)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 359,506 238,737 160,485 1,366
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year ¥238,737 ¥160,485 ¥138,592 $1,179

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I. Presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared from the accounts maintained by Fukoku
Mutual Life Insurance Company (the "Company") and its consolidated subsidiaries in accordance with the provisions set
forth in the Insurance Business Law of Japan and its related rules and regulations and in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in Japan, which are different in certain respects from accounting principles generally ac-
cepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Japan.

In addition, the notes to the consolidated financial statements include information which is not required under
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan but is presented herein as additional information.

Amounts of less than one million yen have been eliminated. As a result, total in yen shown herein do not necessarily

agree with the sum of the individual amounts.

2. U.S. Dollar Amounts
The translations of yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of the reader and have
been made, as a matter of arithmetical computation only, at the rate of ¥117.47 = US$1.00, the effective rate of exchange
at the balance sheet date of March 31, 2006. The translations should not be construed as representations that such yen

amounts have been or could in the future be, converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rates.

Il. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

1. Principles of Consolidation
(1) Scope of Consolidation
Consolidated subsidiaries for the year ended March 31, 2006 are listed below:
Fukoku Shinyo Hosho Company Limited
Fukoku Capital Management, Inc.
Fukoku Information Systems Co., Ltd.
Fukoku Life International (U.K.) Limited
Fukoku Life International (America) Inc.
Fukoku Shinyo Hosho Company Limited, an affiliate for the year ended March 31, 2003, became a subsidiary in the
year ended March 31, 2004 and has been included in the scope of consolidation since the year ended March 31, 2004.
Major unconsolidated subsidiary is Fukoku Seimei Building Company Limited.
Seven subsidiaries are excluded from the scope of consolidation, as each one of them is small in its total assets,
amount of sales, net surplus for the year and surplus and is sufficiently insignificant to reasonable judgement on its

impact on the financial position and results of operation of the Company's group.

(2) Application of Equity Method

Unconsolidated subsidiaries (such as Fukoku Seimei building Company Limited, etc.) are insignificant in their impact on

net surplus for the year and surplus, and also immaterial as a whole, therefore, application of equity method is withheld.
There are no affiliates for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006.
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(3) Fiscal Year of Consolidated Subsidiaries

Among the subsidiaries to be consolidated, fiscal year-end of overseas subsidiaries is December 31. For the preparation
of consolidated financial statements, financial statements as of that date are used and concerning any important transac-
tion taking place in between December 31 and the consolidated closing date, necessary adjustments for consolidation are

made.

(4) Valuation of Subsidiary's Assets and Liabilities on Acquisition
On acquisition of a subsidiary, all of the subsidiary’s assets and liabilities that exist at the date of acquisition are recorded

at their fair value.

(5) Amortization of Consolidation Goodwill
Consolidation goodwill is charged to operating expenses for the year in which it is incurred.

(6) Treatment of Appropriation of Surplus
Consolidated statements of surplus are prepared based on the final appropriation of surplus within the fiscal year.

(7) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, for the purpose of reporting cash flows, are composed of cash in hand, postal saving, current
deposit, ordinary deposit, deposit at notice and call loan. They also include time deposit, foreign currency deposit and

negotiable certificate of deposit, with maturity of three months or less when purchased.

2. Valuation Methods of Securities

The valuations of securities, including bank deposits and monetary claims bought which are equivalent to securities, and

securities managed as trust assets in money held in trust, are as follows:

i) Trading securities are stated at fair market value. Costs of their sales are determined by the moving average
method.

ii) Held-to-maturity debt securities are stated at amortized cost under the straight-line method, cost being deter-
mined by the moving average method.

iii) Policy-reserve-matching bonds are stated at amortized cost under the straight-line method, cost being deter-
mined by the moving average method in accordance with the Industry Audit Committee Report No.21 ""Tempo-
rary Treatment of Accounting and Auditing Concerning Policy-reserve-matching bonds in Insurance Industry"
issued by the Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

iv) Investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates which are not accounted for under the equity method
are stated at cost, cost being determined by the moving average method.

v) Available-for-sale securities with fair market value are stated at fair market value based on the market prices at the
end of fiscal year. Costs of their sales are determined by the moving average method. Net unrealized gains or
losses on these available-for-sale securities, net of taxes, are recorded as a separate component of capital.

Available-for-sale securities with no fair market value are stated at cost, cost being determined by the moving
average method, except for public and corporate bonds including foreign bonds, of which the difference between
acquisition cost and face value is considered to be an adjustment of interest. Such bonds are stated at amortized

cost under the straight-line method, cost being determined by the moving average method.

Derivative instruments are stated at fair market value.



3. Revaluation of Land

The Company revalued the land for business purposes based on the Law for Revaluation of Land (Law No.34 promul-
gated on March 31, 1998). The difference between fair value and book value resulting from the revaluation, net of related
taxes, is recorded as revaluation reserve for land as a separate component of capital and the related tax is recorded as
deferred tax liabilities for revaluation reserve for land.
® Date of revaluation: March 31, 2002
® Method of revaluation as prescribed for in Article 3 Paragraph 3 of the said Law:
Calculation is based on the appraisal value for property tax set forth in Article 2 item 3 of the Enforcement
Ordinance of the Law for Revaluation of Land (Government Ordinance No.119 promulgated on March 31,
1998) and the road rate set forth in Article 2 item 4 of the said Ordinance with certain reasonable adjustments.
= The excess of the aggregate new book value of land for business purposes after revaluation over the total fair value
of land, which is required to be disclosed in accordance with Article 10 of the Law for Revaluation of Land, were
¥1,321 million and ¥4,178 million as of March 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively. The total fair value of land
exceeded the aggregated new book value of land after revaluation as of March 31, 2006.

4. Depreciation of Real Estate and Movables

Depreciation of real estate and movables held by the Company, except for the buildings acquired on and after April 1,
1998 which are depreciated based on the straight-line method, is computed based on the declining-balance method.
Movables acquired for ¥100,000 or more but less than ¥200,000 are depreciated by equal amounts over three years.

5. Foreign Currency Translation

6. Reserves

Foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities are translated into Japanese yen at the effective exchange rate pre-

vailing at the balance sheet date.

(1) Allowance for possible loan losses
Allowance for possible loan losses is provided in accordance with the Company's standards of self-assessment and write-

offs and reserves on credit quality:

i) For the credits of borrowers who are legally bankrupt such as being in the proceedings of bankruptcy or civil
rehabilitation (hereinafter called "legally bankrupt borrowers") and who are substantially bankrupt (hereinafter
called "substantially bankrupt borrowers"), the Company provides the remaining amount of credits after the
direct write-off described below and the deductions of the amount expected to be collected through the disposal
of collateral or the execution of guarantees.

ii) For the credits of borrowers who are not currently bankrupt but have a high possibility of bankruptcy, the Com-
pany provides the amounts deemed as necessary considering the borrowers' ability to pay, within the amounts
after deductions of the amount expected to be collected through the disposal of collateral or the execution of
guarantees.

iii) For the credits of borrowers other than the above, the Company provides the amounts calculated by multiplying

the borrowers' balance by the actual ratio of bad debt losses on defaults during a certain past period.

All credits are assessed by the relevant departments in accordance with the Company's standards of self-assessment
on credit quality. The results of the assessment are reviewed by the audit department, which is independent of business-
related divisions. Subsequently, the allowance for possible loan losses are provided based on the results of these assess-

ments.
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For the credits of legally bankrupt borrowers and substantially bankrupt borrowers, the amounts remaining after
deductions of collateral value or the amounts collectible through the execution of guarantees is written-off directly from
the borrower's balance as the estimated uncollectible amounts. The amounts written-off as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and
2006 were ¥22,906 million, ¥22,408 million and ¥833 million (US$7 million), respectively.

The allowance for possible loan losses of consolidated subsidiaries conforms to the standard used by the Company.

(2) Reserve for retirement benefits
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries adopt accounting standards for employees' retirement benefits (Business
Accounting Deliberation Council dated June 16, 1998) and account for the reserve for retirement benefits based on the

projected benefit obligation and plan assets at the balance sheet date.

1. Reserve for Price Fluctuation of Securities
Reserve for price fluctuation of securities is calculated in accordance with the ruling in Article 115 of the Insurance

Business Law.

8. Lease Transactions
Finance leases, except those leases for which the ownership of the leased assets is considered to be transferred to the

lessee, are primarily accounted for as operating leases.

9. Accounting for Hedge Activities
Hedge accounting is based on "Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments” issued on January 22, 1999 by the
Business Accounting Deliberation Council.

Primarily, for the interest rate swaps on loans qualifying for hedge accounting because of high correlation and
effectiveness between the hedging instruments and the hedged item, gains and losses on the interest rate swaps are
deferred until the maturity of the hedged transactions.

Deposits, bonds and loans denominated in foreign currencies for which forward foreign exchange contracts are used
to hedge the foreign currency fluctuations are translated at the contract rates if the forward contracts qualify for specific
hedge accounting. In this case, exchange differences between exchange rate on trade date and forward contract rate are
allocated to each fiscal year from the date contracted to the date settled.

For judging the effectiveness of hedge used, ratio analysis of comparing the cash flow fluctuation of hedged item
with the same of hedging instruments is mostly applied.

10. Accounting for Consumption Taxes
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries account for consumption taxes by the tax-exclusion method. The con-
sumption taxes on certain assets, which are not deductible from consumption taxes withheld and that are stipulated to be
deferred under the Tax Law, are deferred as prepaid expenses and amortized equally over five years. Consumption taxes

other than deferred consumption taxes are recognized as an expense when incurred.



11. Policy Reserve

12. Software

Policy reserve is based on Article 116 of the Insurance Business Law, and the premium reserve at the end of fiscal year is
calculated by the following method:

In regard to the contracts subject to the standard policy reserve, the method as prescribed by the Commissioner of
Financial Services Agency (Ministry of Finance Ordinance No. 48, 1996) is applied.

In regard to the contracts not subject to the standard policy reserve, the net level premium method is applied.

The software for internal use, which is included in other assets, is amortized based on straight-line method over the

estimated useful lives.

13. Deferred Assets

Bond issuance expenses are charged to income when paid. Discount on bonds is deferred as other assets and amortized

equally over the period for which interest on bonds is fixed.

lll. Notes to Balance Sheets

1. Loans Receivable

The total amounts of credits to bankrupt borrowers, delinquent loans, delinquent loans past 3 months or more and
restructured loans, which were included in loans, were ¥7,509 million, ¥1,971 million and ¥2,317 million (US$19 mil-
lion) as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

i) The balances of credits to bankrupt borrowers were ¥568 million, ¥556 million and ¥429 million (US$3 million)

as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

ii) The balances of delinquent loans were ¥4,744 million, ¥807 million and ¥1,882 million (US$16 million) as of

March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.
iii) The balances of delinquent loans past 3 months or more were no balances as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006.
iv) The balances of restructured loans were ¥2,196 million, ¥607 million and ¥5 million (US$45 thousand) as of
March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Credits to bankrupt borrowers represent loans, excluding the balances already written-off, which meet the condi-
tions prescribed in Article 96 Paragraph 1 Item 3 and 4 of the Enforcement Regulations of the Corporate Tax Law.
Moreover, accruing interest of these loans is not recorded as income after determining that principal of or interest on
these loans is unlikely to be collected due to the significant delay in repayment of principal or interest payment or for
some other reasons.

Delinquent loans are credits whose accruing interest is not recorded as income due to the same reasons as described
above, and exclude credits to bankrupt borrowers and loans for which interest payments have been suspended and re-

scheduled to assist and support the borrowers in the restructuring of their business.
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Delinquent loans past 3 months or more are loans for which interest payment or repayment of principal are delin-
quent for 3 months or more from the due date under the terms of the related loan agreements, excluding those loans
classified as credits to bankrupt borrowers and delinquent loans.

Restructured loans are loans for which certain concessions favorable to borrowers, such as interest reduction or
exemptions, rescheduling of due date of principal or interest payment, waiver of claim or other terms, have been negoti-
ated for the purpose of assisting and supporting the borrowers in the restructuring of their business. This category
excludes loans classified as credits to bankrupt borrowers, delinquent loans and delinquent loans past 3 months or more.

The direct write-offs related to loans decreased credits to bankrupt borrowers described above by ¥51 million,
¥21,615 million and ¥51 million (US$436 thousand) as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

The direct write-offs related to loans decreased delinquent loans described above by ¥22,854 million, ¥793 million
and ¥782 million (US$6 million) as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

2. Accumulated Depreciation of Real Estate and Movabhles
Accumulated depreciation of real estate and movables totaled to ¥107,277 million, ¥112,744 million and ¥113,363 mil-
lion (US$965 million) as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

3. Income Taxes
Deferred tax assets as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 totaled to ¥65,282 million, ¥71,289 million and ¥82,658 million
(US$703 million), respectively. Deferred tax liabilities as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 totaled to ¥54,867 million,
¥66,390 million and ¥143,328 million (US$1,220 million), respectively.

Major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

As of March 31,

2004 2005 2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Deferred tax assets:
POLIiCY IESEIVES ...ovvvveieieereiceceereee e ¥28,257 ¥32,962 ¥43,026 $366
Reserve for retirement benefits .........ceevveveeveeeeervenenen. 15,348 18,364 18,640 158
Reserve for price fluctuation of securities .....c.c.coevvenee. 7,851 11,157 15,424 131
Allowance for possible loan 10SSes ..........cccoeeererurueueuecncns 9,471 4,610
Deferred tax liabilities: S —
Net unrealized gains on SECUTItES .......covveuevereerererrenene. 53,704 64,916 141,659 1,205

The statutory tax rate for the Company and the actual effective tax rates for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and
2006 were 36.2% and 13.4%, 36.2% and 20.0% and 36.2% and 8.5%, respectively. The major differences between the
statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate were reserve for dividends to policyholders of (22.6%), (20.5%) and
(26.3%) for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.



4. Separate Accounts
"Total assets in separate accounts provided for in Article 118 of the Insurance Business Law were ¥96,690 million, ¥101,227
million and ¥123,046 million (US$1,047 million) as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. The amounts of
liabilities were the same as these figures.

5. Monetary Claims to Directors
Monetary claims to directors of the Company as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were ¥26 million, ¥21 million and
¥16 million (US$143 thousand), respectively.

6. Receivahles from / Payables to Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
The total amounts of receivables from/payables to unconsolidated subsidiaries were ¥3,250 million and ¥144 million as
of March 31, 2004, and ¥2,714 million and ¥184 million as of March 31, 2005 and ¥2,869 million (US$24 million) and
¥182 million (US$1 million) as of March 31, 2006, respectively.

1. Reserve for Dividends to Policyholders
Changes in reserve for dividends to policyholders were as follows:

Year ended March 31,

2004 2005 2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Balance at the end of previous fiscal year ...................... ¥70,751 ¥63,879 ¥57,550 $489
Transfer from surplus in previous fiscal year .................. 15,232 16,688 18,966 161
Dividends paid in fiscal year ........ccccoecevevrrieecncnnnennnee (22,244) (23,079) (22,057) (187)
Increase in INTErest ......oevveevereeercreneenreeeeeenesreeeeeneenens 140 62 55 0
Balance at the end of fiscal year ......cccovvveveevcrenenenuenenee ¥63,879 ¥57,550 ¥54,516 $464

8. Pledged Assets and Secured Debts
Assets pledged as collateral as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 totaled to ¥22,794 million, ¥20,834 million and ¥19,440
million (US$165 million), respectively. Secured debts as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 totaled to ¥5,268 million,
¥5,080 million and ¥4,868 million (US$41 million), respectively.

9. Commitment Line

As of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, there were unused commitment line agreements under which the Company is the
lender of ¥14,332 million, ¥12,812 million and ¥3,624 million (US$30 million), respectively.

10. Subordinated Bonds

Repayments of subordinated bonds are subordinated to other obligations.

11. Subordinated Debt Loans

Repayments of subordinated debt loans included in other liabilities of ¥5,000 million (US$42 million) are subordinated
to other obligations.
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12. Contribution to Policyholders Protection Fund and Corporation

The future contribution to the former Insurance Policyholders Protection Fund of Japan, which was succeeded by the
Life Insurance Policyholders Protection Corporation of Japan based on the Supplementary Article 140 Paragraph 5 of
the Financial System Reform Law, were estimated at ¥1,783 million, ¥1,306 million and ¥800 million (US$6 million) as
of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. The contribution will be charged as operating expenses in the year in
which they are paid.

The future contribution to the Life Insurance Policyholders Protection Corporation of Japan under Article 259 of
the Insurance Business Law were estimated at ¥9,247 million, ¥7,243 million and ¥10,615 million (US$90 million) as of
March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. The contribution will be charged as operating expenses in the year in which
they are paid.

13. Reserve for Retirement Benefits

(1) The reserve for retirement benefits as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were calculated as follows:

As of March 31,

2004 2005 2006 2006

Millions of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

a. Projected benefit obligation .......c.ccceceveucueenee. ¥(73,949) ¥(73,293) ¥(73,584) $(626)
b. Fair value of pension plan assets..........c.ceee..... 14,338 15,771 19,810 168

c. Unfunded benefit obligation (a + b) ................ (59,611) (57,522) (53,774) “457)
d. Unrecognized transition obligation ................ 7,887 — — —
e. Unrecognized actuarial differences.................. 7,141 5,572 2,020 17
f. Unrecognized prior service Cost..........coevnee.. 345 310 276 2

g. Reserve for retirement benefits (c+d+e+f)....... ¥(44,236) ¥(51,639) ¥(51,477) $(438)

(2) Gross amount of retirement benefit expenses for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were as follows:

Year ended March 31,

2004 2005 2006 2006

Millions of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
SEIVICE COS weuvviruerireieieeenerieteeeeeeeeereseeeeneen ¥ 3,894 ¥ 3,830 ¥ 3,568 $ 30
INtErest COSt . .covimirinriierireieieeeereeeeeeeeeeeaen 1,481 1,478 1,464 12

Expected return on plan assets .......coceeveeeecrcnenen (392) (501) (551) “

Amortization of transition obligation ................. 7,887 7,887 — —
Recognized actuarial differences .........ccccccceneeee. 980 851 780 6
Amortization of prior Service Cost ............ceeueuee. 6 34 34 0
¥ 13,857 ¥ 13,580 ¥ 5,296 $45

Note: The amortization of transition obligation is recorded as provision for reserve for retirement benefits which is

included in extraordinary losses.



(3) The assumptions used in calculation of the above information were as follows:

® Method of attributing the projected benefits to periods of service ....... Straight-line basis
B DISCOUNT TALE c.vveveeriiieretercscete et tesce et rene s 2.0%

® Expected rate of return on pension plan assets ..........c.cccoeeeecivccuceueunns 3.5%

® Amortization period of transition obligation ........c.ceeeveveeeeerrierenccccne 5 years

= Recognition period of actuarial differences........c.coceueueeecnnnicrccccncnnnnes 10 years

® Amortization period of Prior SErviCe COSt......eueuereriruruererererrerireereercrenens 10 years

14. Stocks of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
The amounts of stocks of unconsolidated subsidiaries the Company held as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were ¥190
million, ¥240 million and ¥240 million (US$2 million), respectively.

IV. Notes to Statements of Operations

1. Transactions with Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
The total amounts of revenues and expenses from transactions with unconsolidated subsidiaries for the years ended
March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were ¥83 million and ¥2,223 million, ¥98 million and ¥2,296 million, and ¥104 million
(US$890 thousand) and ¥2,441 million (US$20 million), respectively.

2. Extraordinary Losses
Other extraordinary losses included in extraordinary losses for the year ended March 31, 2004 was losses of the partial
reorganization of the business of Fukoku Shinyo Hosho Company Limited.

3. Impairment of fixed assets
Effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2005, the Company adopted accounting standards for impairment

of fixed assets (Business Accounting Council dated August 9, 2002). As a result, surplus before income taxes for the year

decreased by ¥3,920 million (US$33 million).

(1) Method of grouping
Real estate and other assets used for insurance business operations are classified as one asset group as a whole. Other

assets such as lease property and unused real estate are classified as one group individually.

(2) Background of recognizing the impairment losses
As a result of decline in profitability due to decrease of rental income and of continuous decline of market value of land,
the Company reduced the book value of lease property and unused real estate to recoverable amount. The amount

reduced were recognized as impairment losses included in extraordinary losses.
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3) Asset groups recognized impairment losses and losses by fixed assets

Year ended March 31,

2006 2006
Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
a. Lease property:
LN 1ttt ettt s b e s bene ¥ 952 $ 8
BUildings «..veveeeerereeieieieinerneeeeenee e e 1,701 14
OTRELS ettt sttt e et a e s eseebe et e s sessesseseeaessasenaans 559 4
TTOTAL ettt st et neeneeeneen ¥3,214 $ 27
b. Unused real estate
AN oottt a e seere e ebeaennas ¥ 307 $ 2
BUildings «..eveveeeerireeeeieeierneeeeeer e e 397 3
OTRETS ettt sttt ettt e st et e e ese et e sse st eneenesaessensensens 1 0
TOUAL ettt a et sb e s e e reeaeebeaennas ¥ 706 $ 6
c. Total (a+b):
| Y T OO ¥1,259 $ 10
BUildings «.eeveveeeenererieiereenenineieieeenestneeteieecest sttt sttt ne 2,099 17
OTRETS ettt ettt ettt et e ae st e st ese et e ssenseneenesaessesensens 561 4
TTOTAL ettt s st et neeneeeneen ¥3,920 $ 33

Note: Major item of others was impairment losses of land lease rights of ¥559 million (US$4 million).

(4) Calculation method of recoverable amount
Recoverable amount is based on net sales value. Net sales value is determined based on appraisal value, posted price or

road rate.

V. Subsequent Events
On May 8, 2006, the board of directors of the Company resolved the raising foundation funds for the purpose of strength-
ening of the capital base subject to the approval of the policyholder representative meeting and Financial Service Agency.



Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors of Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Com-
pany and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, surplus and cash flows for the years then ended, all expressed in Japanese yen.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our respon-
sibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evi-
dence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Company and its consoli-
dated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, and the consolidated results of their operations and
their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
Japan.

(1) As described in Note IV. 3, in the year ended March 31, 2006, the Company and its consolidated
domestic subsidiaries adopted the new accounting standards for impairment of fixed assets.

(2) As described in Note V, on May 8, 2006, the board of the directors of the directors of the Company
resolved the raising foundation funds.

The amounts expressed in U.S. dollars, which are provided solely for the convenience of the reader, have
been translated on the basis set forth in Note I. 2 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Tokyo, Japan
May 24, 2006

%@%w?%v

The Fuji Accounting Office
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Corporate Organization

Organization (as of July 4, 2006)
Branch Office 65
Agency Office 521

Employees (as of March 31, 2006)
Office Staff 2,678
Professional Agents 11,280

Independent Auditors

Board of Statutory

Auditors

Assistant to the
Statutory Auditors

Board of Representative
Members of Policyholders

President

Board of Directors

Nomination Committee of
Candidates for
Representative Members

——  Chief Actuary

Secretariat for Nomination
Committee of Candidates for
Representative Members

President

Executive Committee

4{ Secretarial Div.

4{ Strategic Planning Dept.

4{ Compliance Control Dept.

4{ General Affairs Dept.

4{ Personnel Dept.

—{ Marketing Headquarters ‘

Market Planning Dept.

Retail Management Dept.

Market Developing Dept.

Strategic Market Promotion Dept.

Group Credit Div. Related to the
Government Housing Loan Corp.

Wholesale Management Dept.

JL L 1L L

Human Resources Development Dept.

—{ Customer Service Headquarters ‘

% Group Insurance Dept.

% Group Annuity Dept.

4{ Customer Service Planning Div.

Customer Service Dept.

Underwriting & Claims Dept.

Policy Management Dept.

Medical Dept.

Council

Office Planning Dept.

Securities Investment Dept.

llLLLLL

Loans Dept.

4{ Separate Accounts Management Div.

} Securities Administrative Div.

Financial and Investment Planning Dept.

Real Estate Dept.

Credit Analysis Dept.

Accounting Dept.

Actuarial Dept.

Internal Auditing Dept.

[LL]]

Affiliated Business Dept.

4{ Committee for Editing History of the Company ‘

4{ Branch Offices
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